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The east wing of Greeley High School was built in 1895 in a Georgian Revival style.

The architect, a graduate of the State Agricultural College in Fort Collins, was Harlan
Thomas of Denver. The "romanesque" feeling is carried out in the voluminous cubic shape of
the building, in the use and repetition of the rounded arch throughout, and in the use of
rusticated native red sandstone combined with brick, and in the unusual one-story apsidal
projection in the center of the north facade. This semi-circular extension to the building
housed the Greeley Public Library until a new library was built in 1907. The southern
facade is decidedly the most interesting. Five interconnecting stone arches form a gracefu
rhythmic pattern and "frame" the windows between the first and second floors, giving the
facade an added elegance plus the illusion of height. Fiwve horizontal.stone.slabs divide
each arch between floors. The southern facade has an interesting cornice, with a swag and
shield motif in the frieze. The building has a low-pitched hipped roof. An article that
appeared in THE GREELEY TRIBUNE, January 16, 1896, describes the exterior of the building
as such: '"The foundation is of stone, red sandstone being used above the ground; the
building is of pressed brick set in red mortar with red sandstone trimmings, occupies a
space of about 100 feet square including projecting entrances and library,has two stories
with basement and is 50 feet high. The doors and interior woodwork are oil finished, and
the metal work of the doors is of brass. Cut in the stonework on the front between the
windows of the first and second stories are the words: 'Liberty; Literature; Science; Art;
and Justice," and on the cornice the names of men prominent in science and literature
(Franklin and Longfellow). The building presents a neat and substantial appearance and
except the lettering mentioned, little money has been expended in needless ornamentation."

The remainder of the article is devoted to a lengthy discussion of the interior arrangement
dimensions, and convenience of the building. Briefly summarized, the article describes the
main floor corridor as 18" wide with two classrooms on either side, each about 30' square
with 14" between . the floor and ceilings, and capable of seating fifty students, . The-librar
is described as a ''pretty semi-circular apartment". First floor classrooms were designed
to accommodate -the lower grades; .and .the second floor (consisting of a large 41' x 68' room
with southern orientation) was designed for use by the high school. This room had seats
for 150 pupils, and was designed to be a multi-purpose room,  capable .of .being used-as a
meeting hall or as an auditorium with a stage. Large wooden rolling curtains allowed small
adjoining rooms to be opened onto this large main hall. Two classrooms--one a .laboratory
with a "gas closet" and the other a recitation and dictation room——occupied the north half .
the second floor. Separate cloak “corridors" for boys and girls were designed to minimize
disorder and confusion of students entering and leaving the building, drinking fountains we
installed in the corridors, all classrooms had slate blackboards, and toilet rooms and a
gymnasium were located in the basement. The article concludes with the following informati
"For heating purposes hot water is used and also warm air, and ample provision has been mad
for ventilation by the most approved system. The building is also wired throughout for
electric lights according to rules laid down by the board of underwriters. Whatever may be
said of the exterior, there seems to be little to be desired in the interior arrangements
sanitary or otherwise to the comfort of teacher and pupil.”

With the exception of the southern facade, the high schooluisﬁquite_plgiy'and,vpid of any
excessive architectural ornamentation. The planar effect is punctuated by the symmetrical
placement of windows throughout, and the motif of the arch is subtlely rendered. in the
brickwork that appears over many of the windows, and heavy rounded arches, outlined in nati
sandstone define the entrances to the stairwell projections at the east and west ends of th

building .
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The stringent pecuniary and conservative '"mo frills" guidelines stressed

by THE GREELEY TRIBUNE regarding the design of the 1895 building, seem

more rigorously applied to the 1902-03 grade school addition. In design,

the grade building is similar, yet subordinate to, the high school. The
increased number of children in the lower grades resulted in extreme
over—-crowded conditions in the new high school, so this building was designed
specifically for the lower grades. Very little ornamentation appears in the
overall design, save for the cornice and pediment on the west entrance which
was designed to match the east entrance of the high school building.

The 1895 high school building.and the 1902 grade school building have received
only minor alterations throughout the years. Original photos of the southern
facade of the high school reveal a dormer-type of structure which appeared

in the center of the building over the word "High" which is centered in the
frieze area above the stone arches. This dormer~like structure was removed

in later years and never replaced. The west entrance of the high school

was remodeled in 1902 and used as the connecting member when the grade

school was added to the building. The sandstone and brick masonry of the 1902
west basement stairway entrance is crumbling, and vandals have removed some

of the stone and bricks. The interiors of both buildings have been slightly
modified; a fountain and snack bar were added on the first floor corridor

of the 1895 structure when it was used as a City of Greeley Youth Center
during the 1950's. Likewise, the east and west stairwells in this section
have been sealed off in compliance with fire regulations. Several

classrooms in the 1902 grade building have been partitioned into smaller
rooms, offices, and storage areas, and some ceilings in this section have

been lowered via acoustical tiles., Most of the additions and changes in

the interior of both buildings are reversible and the original floor plan

of both schools is completely discernable.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Greeley High School is significant because it is associated with the strong emphasis
and value that Greeleyites placed.on learning and higher education (education was one of
the five founding principles on which Nathan Meeker based the Union Colony), because the
need for a new school is related to patterns of growth in the community, and because the
final design of the building itself was strongly influenced by the economic factors of the
time. . e

In a letter to the Greeley Tribune, dated January 25, 1894, the school board cited

the overcrowded conditions that existed in the Meeker Building and expressed concerns
about the safety of the antiquated heating and ventilation systems in this building.
The board proposed the construction of a "new building, which for the present can con-
sist of a central hall and a west wing, twc stories high and of sufficient size to
meet the immediate needs of 1894 and 1895, and after this part is completed, as it
should be by 1894, the arrangements can be made, whenever necessary to remove the old
building, and build the east wing which would come about where the present building
(Meeker School) is situated.” Bonds for the estimated amount of $25,000 would need

to be issued to finance the project. :

The plan for the proposed school building was criticized by the Tribune as- too extravagant
in an editorial published in the February 1, 1894 edition. The Tribune also felt that
Greeley's first-schoel, the Meeker School, shouldn't be razed: (although it eventually
was in 1922) and suggested that "the board proceed on a plan for a central building
with two wings. The central building might be erected to join on the present building
on the east, leaving the west wing for some indefinite time in the future," and that,
"the Tribune will advocate bonds toamoderate amount for a building something on the
plan and dimensions named above, but will not advocate any frills whatever in public
expenditure at this time." This "no frills" conservative attitude, coupled with the
conditions and restrictions placed on the style and kind of buildings to be built as
enumerated by the Tribune were adhered to in the final design of the buildings.

The high school building was in continuous use until 1912, when a new high school was

built in another area of town. However, both buildings continued to be used intermittenly
for grade school or junior high school students until 1948 when the city of ‘Greeley acquire
the property from School District Six. It has been used periodically as a youth, recreatio
and senior citizens center, until it was closed in 1978.

Architecturally, the Greeley High School is significant as the oldest high school building
remaining in Greeley and the only existing public building of Georgian Revival architecture
In its present setting, the building is the only large historic "public" edifice that
remains in an area now punctuated primarily by contemporary buildings and parking lots.

w
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Cranford Hall, similarly built with a central section flanked by two wings, and the first
building of the State Normal School (now the University of Northern Colorado), was razed

in 1972. It is interesting to note that when the high school received its west wing addition
of 1902, the west wing was also being added to Cranford Hall.

Today, the presence of these buildings, located adjacent to Lincoln Park (the city's
original and oldest public park) on the east, and several homes of the same vintage

and one of the city's oldest churches on the south, provide a visual definition with the
past—-a past that seems in this particular area to be rapidly eroding in the face of
urban development and change. Again, the significance of Greeley High School and the
Grade School addition of 1902 is both architectural and historical-—it reflected the
citizens response to, and responsibility to the problem of how to accommodate the legiti-
mate educational needs of a growing community in economically difficult times. The

final solutions were primarily utilitarian in nature, and without excessive ornamentation
so as not to appear in competition with the architecture of Cranford Hall at the State
Normal School.



